Walton Cemetery Association By-laws Definitions

Certificate of Burial Rights (CBR): formerly known as "Deed", document stating Name, Address, Section, Lot and Grave Number(s) and amount paid, issued to the consumer after purchase of and receipt of payment for a Lot, Plot or Grave. This certificate is signed by two Trustees and duly Notarized and entitles the owner to one vote at the Annual Meeting (see Article II-Meetings), along with Burial Rights. All "Deeds" issued prior to November 2012, shall be honored in accordance with the By-Laws, Rules and Regulations of the Walton Cemetery Association.

Footstone: same as marker, smaller and placed at the foot of a grave.

Headstone: usually a smaller granite or marble stone for one or two people

Lot: 12 Graves

Monument: usually a large stone, placed in the center of a family Lot, bearing the family name.

Plot: the number of Graves someone purchases (ie: he bought a 4 grave Plot)

1 Grave = 1 Plot

BY-LAWS of the

Walton Cemetery Association Inc.

Article I- Membership

Section 1. All individuals with burial rights in the Walton Cemetery are members of the Walton Cemetery Association, and as such are entitled to attend annual meetings of the Association, to vote on Association matters at such meetings, and to hold office in the Association.

Article II- Meetings

Section 1. A meeting of Association members shall be held on the first Monday in June of each year. The purpose of this meeting is to elect members of the Board of Trustees and to discuss matters pertinent to the operation of the cemetery. The time and place of this meeting shall be announced in at least one newspaper published in Delaware County, for a period of three consecutive weeks immediately preceding the meeting. The election of officers and other issues that may come up at this annual meeting shall be decided by a simple majority vote of the members present at the meeting. A Certificate of Burial Rights (formerly known as Deed) equals one vote.

Article III- Board of Trustees

Section 1. The Trustees elected at the annual meeting shall hold office for a term of three years. There shall be up to eleven (11) and no less than nine (9) trustees. The terms of office shall be staggered so that three positions become vacant each year. Members of the Board of Trustees shall serve without remuneration of any kind. A Trustee may be removed from a position at any meeting of the Board of Trustees by a 2/3 vote.

Section 2. The Trustees shall hold a meeting, within ten days after the annual meeting, For having election of officers of the Board, i.e., a president, vice president, secretary, and treasurer. Those elected shall hold office until the next annual meeting of members. If a vacancy occurs in the Board between elections, the President of the Board of Trustees shall nominate person(s) to fill the vacancy. The board of Trustees will vote on the nominees(s). These positions will be held until the next annual meeting of the Association.

Section 3. The Board of Trustees shall operate the cemetery and manage the affairs of the Association in such a way that burials are performed efficiently, the cemetery is a credit to the community, and the Association remains solvent. The actions of the Board shall conform to guidelines set forth by the New York State Division of Cemeteries and shall be subject to review by the membership at the annual meetings.

Section 4. The President of the Board of Trustees or in his/her absence the Vice President, shall preside over all meetings of the Board, and may call a meeting of the Board when ever he/she deems necessary or when requested to do so by any two members of the Board. A quorum for the transaction of any business, including election of officers, at any meeting of the Board shall consist of at least five members.

Section 5.

A. The Board Secretary shall maintain minutes of all meetings of the Association and the Treasurer shall maintain records of all financial transactions involving the cemetery. The Treasurer shall be bonded by the Association for proper performance of duties. The Treasurer and the President or Vice President of the Board shall countersign payments made by the Association. Another member of the Board of Trustees shall be elected to countersign checks, under extenuating circumstances, i.e. when only one officer is available, to only sign checks from the checking account.

B. An independent professional accountant shall audit the finances of the Association each calendar year.

Section 6. The Board of Trustees shall employ a Superintendent to manage the day-to-day operation of the cemetery. The Superintendent shall also be bonded by the Association.

The Superintendent:

- shall see to the opening and closing of graves and attend all interments;
- shall keep a record of interments and maintain maps of the cemetery grounds showing roadways, plots, and graves;
- shall maintain the cemetery grounds in an exemplary manner and in compliance with the recommendations of the Board;
- shall see to it that all rules and regulations of the Board are observed by visitors and employees;
- shall have general control, under the direction of the Board, over all improvements made on cemetery grounds;
- shall have charge of, and keep an inventory of, all tools, equipment, and structures belonging to the Walton Cemetery Association;
- shall perform such other duties as may be required by the Board of Trustees.

Section 7. The Board of Trustees shall employ a crematory operator to manage the day-to-day operation of the crematory. The crematory operator shall also be bonded by the Association.

The crematory operator:

- shall keep all records required by the State of NY for crematory operations;
- shall have charge of, and keep an inventory of all tools, equipment and structures belonging to the Walton Cemetery Association Crematory;
- shall perform such other duties as may be required by the Board of Trustees;
- shall be in charge of scheduling the annual inspection of the crematory.

Article IV- Amendments

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended at the annual membership meeting by a twothirds majority of Association members present at the meeting, but no amendments shall be effective until approved by the New York State Cemetery Board.